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IN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS

SUMMIT COUNTY, OHIO
MEMBER WILLIAMS, et al,, Case No.: 2016-09-3928
Plaintiffs, Judge: James Brogan
v. NOTICE OF FILING AMENDED

EXHIBITS C,D. H AND J TO

KISLING, NESTICO & REDICK, LLC, et al., DEFENDANT SAM GHOUBRIAL,
M.D.’S OPPOSITION TO PLAINTIFES?
Defendant. MOTION FOR CLASS
CERTIFICATION

Now comes Defendant, Sam N, Ghoubrial, M.D., by and through counscl, and hereby
gives notice of filing Amended Exhibits C, D, H and J to his Opposition to Plaintiffs’ Motion for
Class Certification. These Exhibits are being amended to include pages inadvertently omitted
from the original filing.

Respectfully Submitted,

By:/s/ Bradiey J. Barmen
Bradlcy J. Barmen (0076515)
LEWIS BRISBOIS BISGAARD & SMITH L1LP
1375 E. 9™ Street, Suite 2250
Cleveland, Ohio 44114
Tel. 216.344.9422
Fax 216.344,9421
Brad. Barmen(@lewisbrishois.com

Counsel for Defendant/Appellant
Sam N. Ghoubrial, M.D.

4831-4318-7098.1
Sandra Kurt, Summit County Clerk of Courts
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that on the 27™ day of June, 2019, the foregoing Notice of Filing was

electronically filed with Court and will be served upon all parties via the Coutt’s Electronic

Filing System.,

/s/ Bradlev J. Barmen
Bradley J. Barmen (0076515)
LEWIS BRISBOIS BISGAARD & SMITH LLP

Counsel for Defendant/Appellant
Sam N. Ghoubrial, M.D.

4831-4318-7098.1 2
Sandra Kurt, Summit County Clerk of Courts
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REID, THERA
0770372018 Page 1
1 STATE OF OHIO, )
COUNTY OF SUMMIT. j 538
2z
TN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS
3
MEMBRER WILLIAMS, et al.,)
4 )
Plaintiffs, )
I3} )
v, ) JUDGE BREAUX
6 ) CASE NO. CV-2016-~08-3328
KISLING, NESTICO & )
7 REDICK, LLC, et al., )
)
8 Defendants, )
i) ' - - -

THE VIDEQTAPE DEPOSITION OF
10 THERA REID
TUESDAY, JULY 3, 2018

11 - - -

12 The deposition of THERA REID, called by the
13 Defendants for examination pursuant to the Chio
14 Rules of Civil Pracedure, taken before me, the

15 undersigned, Margaret A. Trombetta, RMR and Notary
1% public within and for the State of Ohio, taken at
17 the offices of Kisling, Nestico & Redick, LLC, 3412
18 W. Market Street, Fairlawn, Ohio, commencing at

19 10:30 a.m., the day and date above set forth.

20

21

22

23

24 § ExHBIT

25 B ( !
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REID, THERA
07/03/2018 _ _ Page 34

1 A  Because I had voicemail.

2 Q Did you save those?

3 A No, T didn't save them.

4 0 How many people left voicemails?

5 A How many people have voicemails?

19 Q How many people left you a voicemail?

7 A Oh, I don't know. There was a few. They were
8 saying they were from this place or that place
9 and, you know, left this number to call and get
10 back in touch with them, and it wag about this
11 accident that, you know, you had.

12 9] Do you remember any of the names?

13 A No, no, I do not.

14 Q And nobody from KNR left you a message that
15 day, did they?

16 A  Therée was no call from KNR, no.

17 @  Okay.

18 A It was from .Akron Sguare, And I did not get a

19 ¢all from KNR until =- I did riot get a call
20 from KNR. Akron Square called KNR, their
21 lawyer:

22 Q Okay. Ma'am, 1'm go‘i‘ngg“'fc_fg. ask the _igu__e}:stibn
23 again. Did KNR call yOUﬁthe day,afterﬂthis
24 accident?

25 iy No.
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REID, THERA
07/03/2018 Page 239

1 Q You don't know one way or another?

2 A Exactly, and I never will.

3 Q And you never had to give a deposition in the

4 underlying case, did you, the accident case

5 where Allstate paid you?

o A No;, I did not.

7 0 Okay. A lawsuit wasn't even filed, was it?

8 A No.

9 Q You were able to get that recovery withoult any
10 of the things that are happening in this case
11 like video discovery and complaints and all
12 that, correct?

13 A Right.

14 Q And you're glad for that, aren't you?

15 A Yeah.

16 Q T mean, do you know if Allstate had hired a
17 lawyer to defend the case against you that they
18 would have looked into all the care and

19 treatment and your background? Do you know
20 that?

21 A Yes.

22 g And if they did all that, do you know whether
23 they would have agreed to pay 45,0007

24 A I don't know.

25 aQ Okay. Now, KNR, and when I say "KNR," I'm
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REID, THERA

07/03/2018 Page 240
1 including the lawyers there, Matt Walker or any
2 of the others, they never pressured you into
3 unwanted medical care, did they?
4 A No.

5 0 They never pressured you into unwanted
6 chiropractic care, did they?
7 A No.

8 Q Okay. 8o if we lock at your answer to

9 Interrogatory Number 29, and before you told me
10 that the conflicted legal representation was

11 your own internal conflict because you were

12 vulnerable or whatever the words are you used,
13 but that's not the answer you gave when you

14 were under oath answering these

15 interrogatories, is it? Would you agree your
16 answer to Interrogatory Number 29 is completely
17 different from what you told me before about

18 conflicted local representation?

19 A Yes.

20 Q And your answer to Interrogatory Number 29, it

21 indicates "pressuring clients into unwanted and

22 unneeded chiropractic care.”

23 and you've already told us they didn't do

24 that to you. Do you know anybody they did do

25 that too?
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REID, THERA
07/03/2018 Page 278

1 call me.

2 0 You don't have any proof that KNR toldlthem to
3 call you, do you?

4 MR. PATTAKOS: Objection.

5 A I don't have proofl.

o Q Qkay.

7 A  No, I don't know, okay. It was them ftelling

8 me, "Here, here's our lawyer."

9 Q No, this is the first phone call, ma'am. They

10 didn't say anything about KNR in that first
11 phone call, did they?

12 A Not in the first one, no,.

13 Q Okay.

14 A But after I went there.

15 Q My guestion is, ma'am, on that phone call to
16 vou the day after this accident, did Akron
17 Square --

18 A No.

19 Q -- mention any other lawyer's name, any

20 lawyer's name?

21 A No,

22 Q Any law firm’'s name?

23 A No .,

24 Q The next paragraph, "No person who identified

25 himself or herself as being employed by or
Mldeps@uslegalsupport.com L. 8 LEGAL SUPPORT Phione: 588.044.8080
Ann Arbor | Detroit | Flint | Jackson Bingham Farms/Sounthficld | Grand Rapids Lansing | Mi. Clemens | Sagivaw | Troy

Sandra Kurt, Summit County Clerk of Courts



CV-2016-09-3928 MICHAEL, KATHRYN 06/27/2019 16:10:00 PM NFIL Page 8 of 93

VOL. 11, THERA REID

04/22/2019 _ o Page 303
1 COMMON PLEAS COQURT OF THE STATE OF OHIO
2 IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF SUMMIT
3
4  MEMBER WILLIAMS, et al.,
5 Plaintiffs,
6 vs. JUDGE JAMES A. BROCAN
7 CASE NO. CV-2016-09-3928
8

9 KISLING, NESTICO & REDICK

10 LiC, et al.,

11 Defendants.

12

13 VIDECTAPED DEPOSITION OF
14 THERA REID, VOLUME II
15 MONDAY, APRIL 22; 2019
16 9:15 A.M.

17 Hilton Akron/Fairlawn Hotel
18 3180 West Market Street
19 Fairlawn, Ohio

20

21

22

23

24

25 REPORTED BY: SARAH DROWN
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VOL. II, THERA REID
04/22/2019 Page 363

1 A No, IT'm not.

2 Q Okay. So ENR did not recommend that you take

3 any loan, did they?

4 A No.

5 Q In fact, they advised against it, correct?

6 A Yes.,

7 0 They certainly did not recommend to you at any
3 time during your representation that you take a
9 loan with Liberty Capital, true?

10 A True.

11 0 In fact, even when -- you said the name Liberty
12 was never mentioned.

13 Even when vou called in asking for Oasis
14 information, they didn't tell you about Liberty
15 Capital's information then, did they?

16 A No.

17 0 They didn't try to push Liberty on you at all,
18 did they? Fair?

18 A They didn't push nobody.

20 9] In fact, the only reason you called about a

21 loan is because you saw an advertisement on TV,
22 separate and apart from KNR, correct?

23 A Yes.

24 Q Can vyou tell me a little bit about your

25 treatment with Dr. Choubrial and how you got to
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VOL. I, THERA REID
04/22/2019 Page 364

1 him and what happened during those treatments?
2 A After the wreck, I was getting phone calls, 1
3 angwered one,

4 Q Not Akron Square, Dr. Ghoubrial.

5 MR. PATTAKOS: She's answering
6 the question, Tom.
7 Go ahead.

8 A T answered one. And it was somebody telling me
9 that they can put me in touch with a
10 chiropractor and set me up with a ride.
11 Q This is the conversation we talked about at
12 vour last deposition, correct?

13 A So I started seeing saild chiropractor, who was

14 Floros. Then Floros put me in touch with

15 Dr. Choubrial. I think they were in the same
16 office. They in turn put me in touch with some
17 surgeon in the Falls, but that didn't go

18 through. But I seen them for a while and seen
19 Dr. Ghoubrial. He gave me shots, prescription
20 Percocets.

21 0 Now, we already talked at your first deposition

22 about the fact that you had no criticisms of
23 the healtlhicare you were provided in this case.
24 And that's true, isn't it?

25 A I'm not ...
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VOL. II, THERA REID
04/22/2019 _ Page 365

1 Q I know you wanted shoulder surgery, but we're

2 talking about -- with Dr. Ghoubrial and
3 Dr. Floros, you testified there wag none 0f the
4 care that youl were unsatisfied with, correct?

5 A Financlally.

6 0 Well, okdy., You made no complaints about the

7 actual care being provided by Dr. Floros and
8 Dr. Ghoubrial, fair? Not the bills, the
9 treatment.

10 A I didn't make arny complaints.
11 0  Okay, And, in fadt, they were helping vou,
12 weren't they?

13 A I thought it was. I don't know about now, to

14 be honest with you, because I'm not seeing
15 anybody and anymore I'm inh just so much dédgone
16 pain that I can't deal half ‘the time.

17 0] At the time they were helpingEYQur pain,
18 weren't they?

19 A To be pumped up on pills and injections, I

20 don't know.

21 Q Ma'am.

22 A I don't know.

23 0 Are you serious?

24 A Sérious.

25 Q So you claimed at your last deposition that you
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VOL. I, THERA REID

04/22/2019 | L - Page 366
1 had no unwanted healthcare and you weren't
2 upset about the healthcare you received. Are
3 you changing that?

4 A I'm not changing anything, I'm just saying I
5 don't know.

6 Q Okay. 1In fact, you recall sending an email to

7 Marty or Matt, one of the two, over at KNR
8 saying that the chiropractic treatment's going
g okay?

10 A I believe so.

11 9 Okay. 1In fact, we talked about it at your last

12 deposition, that not only it was helping you,
13 you would not have kept going if 1t wasn't
14 helpful, true?

15 A True.

16 Q I mean, from spending time with you at a

17 deposition and reading your emails and that, I
18 mean, you're not afraild to voice your opinion
19 if you're upset about something, are you?

20 A No.

21 QO T mean you've threatened to get congressmen
22 involwved, true?

23 A True.

24 Q You got, in your words, bitchy with KNR and

25 apologlized the next day because you were in a
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YOL. II, THERA REID '
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1 tough gituation and you were sort of at the end
2 of your nerves, fair?

3 A Falr.

4 0 They were understanding about that, weren't
5 they?

6 A Yes.

7 Q I mean if you had criticisms of Dr. Ghoubrial

8 or Dr. Floros, you would have been telling KNR
9 that, wouldn't you?
10 A I would have told them that.
11 Q Okay. And you never did, did you?
12 A I don't believe so.
13 @ That's because you were satisfied with their
14 care;, weren't you?

15 A Well, to an extént, I believe.

16 Q@ In fact, when you saw -- tell me about when you
17 first went to see Dr. Ghoubrial.

18 Do you recall how long that was after the
19 accident?

20 A No, I do not.

21 Q0 A week, two weeks, a month?

22 A It wasn't very long, but I don't recall exactly
23 how long,

24 0  Okay. You still were in a lot of pain by the

25 time you saw him, though?
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1 A I was in a lot of pain for a long while. It
2 was broke three places up here and -- fractured

3 my arm,

5 given you some relief, there was still a lot of
6 pain and you needed more than just the
7. chiropractic?
8 A Yes.
9 Q That's why you and Dr., Flgros talked about
10 seeing Dr. Ghoubrial, true?

11 A Yesd.

12 ¢ TWhat did Dr. Floros tell you about

13 Dr. Ghotibrial?

14 A  That he woulé;help_with injections and pain med
15 and something about referral to a &ufgeéon:

16 Q0  An orthopaedic surgeon?

17 A I believe so, ves.

18 @ Okay. So you talked to Dr. Floros. You asked

19 a lot of questions.
20 Did you ask him, "What do you mean b
21 'injections'"?

22 A Yes.
23 Q What did he tell you, do you remember?

24 A Vagiely, but it was something abdut tens

25 injections, I believe it was. Something for
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i the pain. And then there was Percocets, pain
2 pills, and I

3 Q Ig that what Floros said or what you talked
4 about with Ghoubrial?

5 A What T talked about with both of them.

6 Q  Okdy. Now, you had when you left the hospital
7 because -- were you in overnight?
8 Yes.

A

9 Q They gave you Percocets in the hospital, right?
A
Q

10 Yes.

11 Okay. So you went to see Dr, Ghoubrial.

12 You actually were already taking

13 Percocets, but you only had so much left from
14 the hospital, I take it. Is that true?

15 A I believe go, yes.

16 Q Okay. Do you .recall then -- tell me akout your
17 visit with Dr. Ghoubrial.

18 A Oh, goodness. T don't gven :know.

19 O Was there somebody in the office with him when

20 he saw you?

21 A Probably my mom.

22 Q Okay. Was there a nurse .in the office as well?
23 Or do you not recall?

24 A  Probably.

25 O Do you recall that dinteraction that you had
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1 with Dr. Choubrial?

2 A We just talked the first time.

3 O | Now, T noticed from looking at the notes -- I

4 didn't even see that you called up and told KNR
5 that you were going to go see Dr. Ghoubrial.

6 You didn't talk about that with them until

7 later. I'm not criticizing you, I'm Just

8 saying.

9 Do you -remember differently ‘than that?

10 A No.

11 Q  Your decision to g6 to Dr. Ghoubrial was based
12 on Dr. Ploros' ‘recomméndation, true?

13 A True.

14 @ I mean KNR didn't tell you to go to

15 Dr. Ghoubrial, did they?

16 A No.

17 @  When you went and saw Dr. Ghoubrial, you then
18 had a discussion with him about what your

19 symptoms were, fair?

20 A Yes,

21 Q0  You told him you were in a lot ¢f pain?

22 A Well, yeah. It was pretty obvious. You could
23 see 1t. My wﬁole arm was black and purple.

24 Q Dr. Ghoubrial talked to you about different

25 options for treatment, fair?
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1 A Yeah. I guess so. As far as I can remember,
2 Ves.

3 Q Okay, Well, what do you remember about that

4 first visit?
5 A I mean we sat and we talked about what -- T
6 don't really remember, I méan we talked.

7 Q He didn't sneak up on you and just jab you with
8 a needle without talking about it, did he?
9 A No.
10 Q He wasn't smoking in the iroom, was he?
11 A No.
12 He didn't grope me.
13 & Okay. So what do you remgmber your discussion
14 being with him?
15 A It would probably bée about the medication that
16 I was taking and what was wrong with me.
17 ¢  What do you mean by that?
18 A X-rays.
19 What I was already on. My medication
20 that I was already on.
21 Q Ckay.
22 A And what was already wrong with me. So as to
23 not mess me all up, I don't know.
24 Q You told him about the accident?

25 A Yeah.
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1 Q You told him that your pain was basically 10
2 out of 107?

3 A At that time 1t was like a 50 out of 10, but
4 ves,

5 Q You knew you were going-there in part to talk
6 potentially about injections, true?

7 A I don't know, to be lonest.

8 Q Well, I thought you just said when you

9 talked --
10 A Well --
11 Q -- to Dr. Flordos hé mentioned that.
12 A  He may have. I don't know.
13 Q@ Okay. Did you do any research about injections
14 before you went, just out of your own
15 curiosity?
16 A No:
17 @ Had. you ever heard of them before?
18 A No.
19 0 Did. they refer to them as cortisone injections?
20 Or how wids it reférréd to? Or do you not
21 recall?

22 A I don't recall.
23 @ Okay. Do you recall discussing that issue of
24 trigger point injections with Dr. Ghoubrial?

25 A No.
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1 o) So let me make sure I have this right.

2 You're not saying you did not talk about
3 trigger point injections, you're saying you
4 don't recall the specifics?

§ A I'mnot saying I didn't talk to him about it.
6 I'm not saying that at all., I'm saying --
8 A -~ I don't remember the gpecifics about it,
9 0 Obviously you agreed to get the trigger point
10 injections, correct?
11 A Corrédt.

12 Q  You wouldn't have done that unless you were

13 satisfied in your own mind that you knew what
14 was in the medication and what it did to you,
15 true?

16 A Right.

17 Q@  You may not remember the conversation, but you

18 know you would make_surefyqu_had that

19 information, true?

20 A Right.

21 Q In fact, they helped, didn't they?

22 A sI:guess_so.

23 Qg I'm-looking at your second visit there where it
24 sdys "She sdid she had tremendous relief after

25 ~ the trigger point injections in her lower
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1 back."
2 Do recall that?
3 iy Ttremeridous relief.™
4 Q "after the trigger point injections in her
5 lower back."

& A I don't know about tremendous relief. I may
7 have had some relief.
8 8] You went back for more, true?
9 A Well, yeah,
10 Q@  You wouldn't have done that if you didn't think
11 they were working, would you?
12z A I don't think so, no.
13 0O You never cgmplained_to anybody that they
14 weren't working( did you?

15 A  No, but I wasn't sure. I mean between that and

16 the Percocets, I didn't know 1if, you know,

17 which one, if both of them, you know. And if
18 the pills were helping the shots or the shots
19 were helping the pillls, you know.

20 Q@ Well, let me ask you this: Do you deny saying

21 that you had tremendous relief after the
22 trigger point injections in your lower back?
23 Are you denying that you said that?

24 A T don't knéw if I said that or not.

25 Q Okay.
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1 A I don't remember saying "tremendous relief.™
2 Okay.

Q
3 A T don't use that word.
9

4 Do you ab least remember telling him that you
5 had relief after the trigger point injections?
6 A T may have told him I had relief.

7 g Okay. And then you went back a third tdne for

8 more trigger point injections -=
9 MR, PATTAKOS: Objection,
10 Q - gorrect?

11 A I giiéss, ves.

12 Q  Again, you wouldn't have done that if. they

13 weren't working, would .you?

14 MR, PATTAKOS: Objection.

15 A No.

16 0 You also didn't complain about those, did you?
17 A No.

18 Q Now, I see where you were tregferred to chronic
19 pain management.

20 Do you recall who that was?

21 A Chronic pain management.

22 O Yeah. It says "I will refer her to chronic

23 pain management.”

24 D6 yol remember talking with

25 Dr. Ghoubrial about that?
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1 A I was referred to a couple people. Possibly.
2 Aye yi yi. I'm not sure.

3 Q Okay. But you understood that Dr. Ghoubrial

4 would only treat you so long for the pain, he
5 wasn't going to treat you long-term or

6 chroni¢cally, true?

7 A Oh, that's what -- yes. I -- I got that,

g8 uh-huh. Yes.

9 O That's why he was referring you out, true?
10 A Right.
11 0 Okay. He also referred you to Dr. Chonko for
12 your shoulder surgery?
13 A Yes.
14 0 Qkay{ I know there was some problems.
15 Dr. Chonko referred you thén to a
16 Dr: Nice?
17 A Yes, because Dr. Chonko doesn't do shoulders,
18 he does hips. And Dr. Nice does shoulders, but
19 he was going to Oregon for a year and --
20 Q You wanted continuity of care?
21 A Didn't want to do my shoulder and leave me
22 hanging.
23 Q Okay.
24 - S0

25 Q Did he refer vyou to the Crystal Clinic?
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i A True.
2 o) Did you two discuss & TENS unit at all?
3 A I believe =s0.
4 0 Do you know what a TENS unit is?
5 A Vaguely.
6 Q Do you recall what he said about 1t?
7 A Not really, no.
8 Q He didn't push a TENS unit on you, did he?
9 A We talked, discussed it. No. I don't ...
10 @ It wasn't appropriate for syour injuries? Or do
11 vou recall the exact conversatidon?
12 A No.

13 6] Okay, Bpt”you two decided a TENS unit wasn't
14 going_to'heip_you, fair?

15 B Yeah.

16 Q Well, do you recall anything about the

17 conversation?

18 A No, It's been a while.

19 Q0 We know you did not get a TENS unit, right? Or

20 did you?
21 A I just -- I don't know. I guess I just got the
22 shots.

23 O Okay. So after discussing 1t with
24 Dr. Ghoubrial, you and he decided together that

25 a TENS unit would not be necessary for_your
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1 injiiries, true?

2 A I guess s50.

3 0 He never pushed that on you either, did he?

4 A I don't remember. |

5 Q You don't recall him pushing it on you, do you?
6 A I don't remember. I

¥ Q I'm saying, ma'am, do you have a memory of him
8 pushing it on you, yes or ne?

9 MR, PATTAKOS: she just saild
10 "I don't remember,” Tom.

11 A I gust told you. I don't have a memory of it.
12 @ Okay. So it's fair to say he did not try to
13 push it on you, true?

14 iy T don't remember_that, no.

15 @ You don't remember it happening, is that what

16 you're saying?
17 MR. MANNTION: I'm trying to
18 find out. She said "I don't remember that."

19 ¢  You don't remember him Pushing it on you, true?
20 A No, I don't remember.

21 Q Ma'am --

2% MR. PATTAKOS: She just said

23 she doesn't remember.

24 MR, MANNION: Stop. I'm not

25 asking you.
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1 paperwork.,

2 MR, MANNION: 29;

3 - - - - -

4 (Defendants' Exhibit 29 was marked.}
5 .- - - -

6 0 I'm showing you some of Dr. Ghoubrial's

7 records.

8 | Do you remember when you went in and he

9 asked you what happened and asked you about the
10 accident and your pain? Do you recall that?

11 A Yes.

12 0 It says here on 29, "Thera is a 37-year-old

13 very pleasant woman who had a motorcycle
14 accident on April 20, 2016."

15 That's information you would have
16 provided to him?

17 A Well, I don't know 1f I provided that I'm very
18 pleasant, but --

19 Q Ckay. True,

20 A Okay.

21 0 That's how he described you, but the rest of

22 the information you would have provided to him?
23 A Okay. Yes.

24 Q It's accurate, true?

25 A Yes,
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1 Q "She was the passenger on the back of a
2 motorcycle when the motorcycle approached an
3 intersection and a SUV ran a stop sign.”
4 Did I read that correctly?

5 A Yes.
& Q Also information you would have provided to
7 him, correct?

8 A Yes,

9 Q "The motorcycle driver glammed on the brakes
10 and Thera went flying off the back of the
11 motorcycle and broke her right humerus.”

12 Was that correct?

13 A Yes.

14 Q "She went to the emergency room at Akron City

15 Hospital by ambulance, where she was treated

16 and released.”

17 Was that correct?

18 A Yes.

19 Q  ¥You provided him that information?

20 A Yes,

21 Q Do you need to take a break because of your

22 shoulder?

23 A Nope. I'm good.

24 Q Okay. It says "She" -- referring to you -- "is

25 unfortunately in severe paln in her shoulder,
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1 neck, and back."
2 That was true information, correct?

3 A Yes.
4 Q He would have got that from both examining you
5 and talking to you, correct?

& A Yes,

7 0 "On a scale of 1 to 10, her pain is 10 out of

8 10 in severity."

9 We already talked about I think you said
10 it was a 50.

11 A Anyway.
12 0 "She has significant pain and discomfort.”
13 That's accurate, correct?

14 A Yes,

15 O "She 1g golng to be seeing the orthopaedic
16 surgeon,"
17 That was true as well, correct?

18 A Yes.

19 Q So you talked about all of those things with
20 the doctor?

21 A Eventually.

22 O Well, I mean you talked about that with him
23 when you went in and saw him for the first
24 time, correct?

25 A I believe s0.
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1 Q Okay. Well, when you say "eventually,”™ the

2 first thing he did with you was ask you what
3 happened and how you're feeling basically,
4 correct?

5 A Yeah.

& Q This was the information you two went over,

7 fair?

8 A Yes.

g Q He did an exam of vyou, didn’'t he?
10 A Yes.
11 Q He examined your —- that "HREENT" means head,
12 cars, evyes, nosge, and throat. T don't know 1if
13 you know that.
14 But he looked at your ears, he looked at
15 your eyes, heée looked down your throdt. He did
16 that all, didn't he?

17 A Yes,

18 Q He also palpated. That means he touched your

19 neck like this.
| 20 Did he, ma'am? He touched your neck to
21 check it out?

22 A I believe so.
23 Q Okay. He looked at your spine and your back,
24 correct?

25 A Yes.
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1 0 It says here that "She has severe pain and

2 tenderness at the cervical and upper thoracic
3 spine.,™

4 Would you agree that you essentially had
5 pain throughout your entire back?

6 A Oh, vyeah.

7 Q It says "reproducible pain." Meaning, I

8 believe, that if he touches it, it was even
9 more painful, but -- was it?
10 A Yes,
11 Q Okay.
12 A A lot.
13 o) Then it says "guarding," which means you sort
14 of flinch if you think someone's going to touch
15 it,
16 Is that how you were?
17 A Yes.
18 QO Spasms. Do you know what those are?
19 A Yes.
20 Q You had those, true, right?
21 A Yes., Still do.
22 Q It says significant tenderness of your lower
23 back. It says "lumbar spine."
24 That was true as well?

25 A Yas.
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1 Q Now, do you remember that it was greater on the
2 right -- or greater on the left than the right,
3 or do you not remember that detail?

4 A T really don't remember that detall particular,
5 I just remember it hurt like heck all over.

6 0 He also checked your grasp and manipulation,

7 correct?

8 A Yes.

9 0 By the way, up above, where it says past

10 medical history of nystagmus, migraines, and
11 hypethyroidism, he would have got that from
12 you?

13 A Yes,
14 Q Okay.
15 A That's where I was telling you that we went
16 over the past meds and everything I was on.

17 Q You didn't give him any of the past about

18 depression and that or?
19 A I don't believe so.
20 Q Okay.
21 X If I did, it would have been on there.
22 @ Right. TIt's okay. ‘
23 Past surgical history. You talked to him
214 about four different things that you had done
25 in the past?
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1 A Uh-huh. Yes.
2 Q He asked you obviously about drug use and
3 tobacco use and things like that. Correct?
4 A Yes.
5 O He also asked vou the medications you were on,
6 true?
7 A Yes.
8 Q You told him about the Paxil and the other
9 medications?
10 A Well, see, Paxil's right there. So why he
11 didn't have depression up there is beyond me.
12 0 Well, vou don't recall telling him depression
13 other than saying you're on Paxil, right?
14 A Well
15 Q He wasn't there to treat your depression, true?
16 A I know. ©No, But, I mean, it goes hand in
17 hand.
18 0 Well, my point is that all of these medications
19 are medications you told him you were on.
20 A Yes.
21 Q The "oxycodone from the emergency room," You
22 told him about that?
23 A Yes.
24 Q Do you have any drug allergles?

25 A Codeine.
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1 0 Oh. Okay.

2 Do you know why 1t says none on drug
3 allergies?
4 A No.

5 QO  Ckay. You don't remember talking to him about
6 codeine?
7 A I tell every doctor codeine.
8 9] Okay. 8o now if we go down, further down in
9 the physigal exam, after he talked to you, he
10 then examined vou, true?
11 A After, vyeah.
12 0 And then it says "Grasp/Manipulation."
13 He actually checked how you could grasp
14 and manipulate your fingers too, correct?
15 A I believe so0.
16 Q He checked your armg, your upper extremities,
17 true?
18 A Yeah,

19 Q Tt says the "right upper extremity is

20 immokbilized."

21 That was true, right?

22 A The right upper is immobilized.

23 9 In a sling.

24 A Yes.

25 Q "She has a 40 by 60 centimeter bruise in the
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1 A Yeah.

2 o) Now, when you talked to him about the trigger

(a}

points, you obviocusly agreed that you would get
4 some injections at trigger points, true?

5 A Yes.

6 Q Can you tell me what you remember about that

7 conversation, or is that just something that

8 doesn't stick in your memory?

9 A It doesn't really stick.

10 0 Okay. Can you recall how it is that those were
11 adminigtered? Did he do it? Did the nurse do
12 it?

13 A He did.

14 0 Did he have to —- did you already have your
15 shirt removed?

16 A No.

17 Q Okay. Do you know how he did that?

18 A Just 1ift my shirt up.

19 Q Okay. He had to prep it with alcohol right?
20 A Yes.

21 Q I mean vou knew he was giving you these,

22 acorract?

23 A Yes.

24 0 There was no secret about it, was there?

25 A No.
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1 Q You then set another appointment for the
2 following week, c¢orrect?
3 A Yeg.

4 Q How long did that first visit take, to go

5 through all that history, the medications, the
6 social history, the physical exam, the trigger
7 polnt injectionsg?

8 A It took a while.

9 Q T mean we're talking half hour, 45 minutes?
10 A It seemed like. Maybe a little bit longer. 1
11 don't krnow. It took a while.
12 Q Okay. I saw no comment in there about any
13 discussion of a TENS unit. So you're not sure
14 whether you had that discussion or not?
15 A  I'm not sure.
16 0 Okay. And then if we come back, on May 4, your
17 arm was still in a sling, i1s that correct?

18 A Yes.

19 Q0 Again, we went over this one about -- but will
20 you agree with me it's in the record here?

21 "She sald she had tremendous relief after the
22 trigger point injections in her lower back." I
23 read that correctly?

24 A You read it correctly, but, like I said, I

25 don't uze that word. So
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1 Q But you had relief?
2 A But I had relief,

3 Q Okay. You still had gsome discomfort in your

4 neck, though, and still some gunarding and

5 tenderness in the right trapezius. So there
3 were some more trigger polnt drnjections, but
7 only in the neck, not the lpwer back, fair?

8 A Right.
9 0 You didn't get the lower bhack because you no
10 longer needed them, right?
11 A I guess I did. I don't really know.
12 Q Okay. He certainly didn't recommend to you
13 that you get them in the lower back and you Say
14 nec, true?
15 A Right.

16 Q S0 you then come back again, and this is where

17 it says "I will refer her to Dr., Chonko."

18 But you come back then in -~ six more
19 days you were supposed to c¢ome back, but you
20 were a no show for some reason. I don't know
21 what happened. I assume you don't remember
22 that.

23 Do you remember it?

2.4 A  There was a couple times I had to miss.

25 Q Just for whatever reason? Transpotrtation or
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1 Q That's why you and Dr, Ghoubrial talked about
2 trying trigger point injections again in the
3 neck, correct?

4 A Yes.

5 O You agreed to those, fair?

6 A Yes.

7 Q KNR never told you to get a trigger point

8 injection, did they?

9 A No.

10 Q Okay. You came back for follow-up on June 1.
11 Do you see that?
12 A Yes.
13 Q You talked about the surgery again.
14 It says "The trigger point injections
15 were very benefiéial to her neck.”
16 pid T read that correctly?
17 A Yeg.
18 0 | That's how you remember 1t as well, correct,
19 ma'am?
20 A What, that they were Pbeneficial?
21 Q Yes.
22 A Well, like I said, you know, it helped.
23 0 You wanted them, right?
24 A I wanted it to help.
25 Q  When you went there, you wanted the trigger
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1 point injections, right? It was your desire to
2 have the trigger point injections, true?
3 A Yes.

4 Q Okay.

5 A Because I wanted something to help. I needed

6 something to help me. And I didn't know if it
7 was that or the Percocets or the combination of
g that was helping.

9 Q FEither way, you were starting to get benefit
10 from your treatment with Dr. Ghoubrial, true?
11 A I was feeling a little bit of relief.

12 0 You were telling him that the trigger point

13 "injections were working and that the Percocets
14 were working as well, true?

15 A T was feeling relief, yes.

16 Q From both of those is what you told him, true?
17 A Yes.

18 Q So what are you saying the kickbacks are from
19 Dr. Floros to KNR?

20 MR. PATTAKOS: Asked and

21 answered, Tom. We went over this at the last
22 deposition.

23 MR, MANNION: Stop.

24 Q Goc ahead.,

25 MR. MANNION: You've now
MIdeps@nslegalsupport.com L. 8. LEGAL SULIPORT Thone: 888.044.8080
Ann Arbir | Detroit | Flint | Jackson’ Bingham Farms/Sonthfield | Grand Rapids Lansing | ¢, Clemens | Saginaw | Troy -

Sandra Kurt, Summit County Clerk of Courts




CV-2016-09-3928

MICHAEL, KATHRYN 06/27/2019 16:10:00 PM NFIL Page 38 of 93

HARBOUR, RICHARD A,
02/02/2019 Page 1

1

2

10
11
12
13
14
15
le
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

COMMON PLEAS COURT OF THE STATE OF OHIO

IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF SUMMIT

MEMBER WILLIAMS, ét al.,
Plaintiffs,
VS, JUDGE JAMIES A. BROGAN

CASE NO. Cv-2016-09-3928

KISLING, NEgGTICO & REDICK
LLZ, et al.,

Defendants.

VIDEGTAPED DEPQOSITION OF RICHARD A, HARBOUR
SATURDAY, FERRUARY 2, 2019
9:47 A.M,
DounbleTree by Hilton Hotel
3150 Wesgt Market Street

Fairlawn, Ohio

REPORTED BY:

Sarah R. Drown

RPR, Notary Public

MIdeps@uslegalsupport.com 1, 8. LEGAL SUPPORT EXHIBIT

Ann Arbor | Detroit| Flint | Jacksan Bingham Farms/Southfield [ Grand Rapids Lansing | Mt

Sandra Kurt, Summit County Clerk of Courts




CV-2016-09-3928 MICHAEL, KATHRYN 06/27/2019 16:10:00 PM NFEIL Page 39 of 93

HARBOUR, RICHARD A,
02/02/2019 Page 20

1 0 Did you talk to anybody before you sought legal
2 advice?
3 A No, sirc,

4 Q What did yvou want to seek legal advice for?

5 What was the reason?

6 A Getting the repairs done on my vehicle properly

7 and to make sure that my medical needs were

8 ‘properly taken care of.

9 Q When vou say your medical needs were properly
10 taken care of, do you mean to help you get to a
11 doctor or do you mean to be paild for the
12 services?

13 A My intention of that was to ensure that the

14 bills that [ would incur were not handled by

15 myself or my private insurance but were handled
16 by the at-fault party's insurance and taken

17 care of in that matter.

18 QO Have you ever tried to negotiate a settlement
19 with an insurance company yourself?

20 A Not that I can recall, no,.

21 Q Okay. You didn't want to do that in this case
22 eilther, true?

23 A Correct.

24 Q  Why?

25 A At that time -- I'm not an attorney. I'm not
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1 and KNR about the treatment of his clients and
2 something to do with triggeir points.

3 Q You had trigger point injections with
4 Dr. Ghoubrial?
5 A Correct. Yes.

6 Q They helped you, didn't they?

g could have been other course of medical care
10 that I was given at the time as well.

11 0 Well, I guess we'll just go right to it, then,
12 e e - -

13 {(Defendants' Exhibit 14 was marked.)

14 e - - -

15 @ When is the last time you read your deposition?

16 I'm ShOWiﬂg ¥ou Exhibit 14.

17 A I don't recall ever reading this.

18 Q You've never .read this ever?

19 A No.

20 @ If you would turn to page 102.

21 Well, and by the way, first turn to page
22, 4,

23 Do you see al the tQp it says -~ itls —-=
24 yeah, there are four to a page.

25 "WHEREUPON,
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1 RICHARD HARBOUR,
2 who, after being first duly sworn,
3 testified as follows"?
4 Do you gsee that?
5 Right here, sir. Do you see where I'm
6 looking?
7 Yeah, right there.
8 A Yes.
9 Q Tn other words, you were under oath, true?
10 A Yes.
11 Q and then if you turn to page —-- it's 102 of the
12 transcript and page 26 of this.
13 MR, PATTAKOS: Do you need a
14 hand?
15 THE WITNESS: I got it.

16 Q I'm going to read the guestion at line 5.

17 "and did that treatment provide you

18 relief?”

19 What was your answer?

20 A Are you on page 267

21 Q Yeah. Page 102,

22 A Oh, sorry. I heard you say --

23 Q Yeah, 26 —-

24 MR, PATTAKOS: 26.

25 Q -— of the document.
VOISO | g e Ghad T 3w i o g P
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1 MR. PATTAKOS: If you lock --
2 yeah., Yeah, here, I'11l get it.

3 Here it is.‘ Wait a minute.
4 THE WITNESS: I'm going off
5 of, you know.
6 MR. PATTAKOS: 26 of the
7 document .
8 MR. MANNION?Y "26 of 42" at
9 the bottom.
10 MR. PATTAKQOS: This says 124.
11 . Bh, "7 of 42." T gee.
12 MR. MANNLION: The far right,
13 it says "26 of 42." Do you see that?
14 MR. PATTAKOS: Yeah. See,
15 it's confusihg, bedause sometimes it's on the
16 left and sometimes dt's on the right. It
17 depends on -- so it's page -- which page on
18 this page 267
19 MR. MANNION: 102.
20 MR. PATTAKOS: So right there.
21 A Yep. Okay. Line 5,
22 0] Question, "And did that treatment provide you
23 relief?"
24 What was your answer?
25 A  Answer was "The cortisone shots did, yes."
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1 Q Okay. You can get that aside for now.

2 So as of March 12, 2015, when you were
3 under oath, you stated that the injections by
4 Dr. Ghoubrial did provide you relief, true?

9 did or did not. The answer to that guestion
10 was 'yes. I mean, they could have. There's
11 othet thingg that could have been involved in
12 that.
13 But the question that I was asked

14 directly andfthat you just read was did they
15 provide relief and the answer to that guestion
16 was yes, but you're dskifig me if I can say

17 whether they did or did not.: I can't tell you
18 what really made my body feel better.

19 @ Well, let me ask it another way.

20 You believed the cortisone shots provided
21 you relief, fair? That was what 'you believed?
22 A At the time, yes.

23 0 Didthat change at some point?

24 A No. I'm angweéring -~ you're asking about this

25 deposition. TI've answered the question in that
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1 A No,
2 Q But now this is a different Guestion I'm asking
3 you ‘and lel me explain what I'm gsking. I'm
4 not asking you whether what was injected into
5 you was or wasn't cortisone, I'm asking what
6 you were told by Dr. Ghoubrial:
7 Did he specify the type of medication
8 that he was going to use?
9 A Yes, he did.
10 Q He .specified it as cortisone, correct?
11 A Yes, he did.
12 @  So it would not be an unspecified medication,
13 would 1t?
14 A If'you_want to look at it that way; To.
15 Q Are you going to remove that allegation?
16 A  That's ndt for fie to make the determination of.
17 Q  You're not claiming Dr. Ghoubrial just gave you
18 an injection and didn't tell you what it was,
19 are you?
200 A  I'm saying that Dr. Ghoubrial told me he was
21 giving me cortisone; buf when I asked if I knew
22 what it was, I don't know 100 ‘percent that’'s
23 what 1t was.
24 @ Let me ask it again.
25 Are you claiming that Dr. Ghoubrial did
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1 A "Dr, Auck did."
2 0 Question, "Why?"
3 What wag your answer?

4 A "Because I was having, vou know, pain, he felt

6 along with his care.”

7 9 So under oath in March 2015 you testified that

8 you werg referred tpo Dr. Ghoubrial by Dr. Auck,
9 correct?

10 A Yes.

11 Q That was truthful, correct?

12 A  Yes.

13 Q  So would you agree now that it was actually

14 Dr. Auck who referred you?

15 A I do now recall that Dr. Auck and I did have &
16 discussion, yes.

17 Q In fact, after Dr. Auck referred you to

18 Dr. Ghoubrial, you had some trouble getting'in

19 because of your work Schédile and his patient

20 slots, true?

21 A _Cbrrect. Yes.

22 O So you called and talked with Mr. Redick, fair?
23 A Correct., Yes.

24 Q  He said he would see what he could de?

25 A If my memory's correct on that, yes. T don't
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1 remember the exact conversation, you know.
2 Q And then actually Mr. Redick called br. Auck
3 and advised him of what was going on and asked
4 if there was another doctor that Dr. Auck could
5 refer you to. -Dofyou_recail that?

6 A I don't know what Mr, Redick did, but that
1 could be correct, .yes.

8 Q In fact, vou actually ecalled your primary gdre

9 physician then when you couldn't get in to see
10 Dr. Ghoubrial and he told you he couldn't see
11 yoli because he didn't want to be involved in a
12 motor vehicle accident case?

13 A Yes,

14 Q You contacted your‘primary_care about that,
15 fair?

i6 B I did, yes.

17 .  And then eventually they were able to get you
18 in to see Dr. Ghoubrial. You saw him, fair?
19 A Yes.

20 Q@ Okay. Do you recall telling KNR -- sending

21 thei an efiail that said that you saw

22 Dr. Ghonbrial, he gave you some shots of

23 cortigone and we shall see if these work and

24 what, ‘if any, relief I'm able to get?

25 Do you recall that?
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1 A Yes.
2 Q In fact, you wouldn't have kept getting the
3 shots 1f you didn't think they were working,

5 A That's fair to say, ves.

6 9] As ¢f June 2011, a couple monthsg into the

7 representation, you told KNR evepything's been
8 going extremely well and you Werg very
3 impressed with KNR.
10 Do you recall that?
11 A Yes.
12 Q  You liked Dr. Auck quite a bit, didn't you?
13 2 I did, yes:
14 Q He was wonderful, wasn't he?
15 A Yes, he was.
16 Q Oh, by the way, you undéerstand the impact that
17 unpaid medical billg can have on somebody,
18 don't you?

19 A  What do you mean by that?

20 0 Well, if medical billg pile_ﬁp and you can't
21 pay them, they can cause a lot of problems,
22 fair?

23 A  For some people, ves.

24 O  Well, they have to you, right?

25 A Yes.
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1 Q They caused you to file bankruptcy, fair?
2 A Well, nc. That's not why I filed bankruptcy,
3 no.

4 0] Well, when you were first asked about that in

5 your deposition, you mentioned it was from
6 medical bills and went on t& gsay you couldn't
7 work and couldn't pay your bills?

8 A Right.

9 0 Okay.
10 A That was -- the main reason was because I was
11 injured and was not able to work.
12 Q@  But 1f it wasn't for those medical bills being
13 unpald, you wouldn't have had to file
14 'bankruptqy, fair?
15 A I &an't say that 100 percent. Thére was other
16 fattors dnvolved in that bankruptey.
17 Q Those are the only things you mentioned in your
18 deposition, was the fact of the medical billg
19 and not ‘béing able to work, fair?
20 A  Correct, Yés:
21 Q  So you know that unpaid medical bills can
22 really cause a problem for somebody, fair?
23 A They can, yes.
24 o] They have for you?

25 A To some degree, vyes.

MIdepsi@uslegalsoppovt.com U. 8. LEGAL SUPPORT Phone: 888.044,8080
AnnArbor | Detroit | Flint | Jaclsson Bingham Farnis/Sonthiield | Grand Rapids Lansing | ME, Clemaens | Sagivaw | Treoy

Sandra Kurt, Summit County Clerk of Courts




CV-2016-09-3928 MICHAEL, KATHRYN 06/27/2019 16:10:00 PM NFIL Page 49 of 93

HARBOUR, RICHARD A.
02/02/2019 o | Page 65

1 @ Well, even in 2011 when you were being
2 represénted, you were worried about medicdl
3 bills then, correct?

4 A I was.

5 O There was a collection attorney -- maybe not an
6 attorney, but some of the billsg went to
L collection, fair?
8 A They did, yes.
9 Q some hit your credit report?
10 A Yes, they did.
11 Q  But net Dr., Ghoubrial's of Dr. Auck's, fair?
12 A Not that I can recall, corréct.
13 O Because there was a letter of protegtion in
14 place, true?

15 A Right. I believe the bills would be held off

16 until the caseé was résolved.

17 £ Okay. And you wanted that, didn't you?

18 A Yes,

19 O That was in your best interest, wasn't it, sir?
20 A Yes.

21 @ 1 don't want to talk about any of your

22 treatment for any of your nonaccident-related
23 coriditionsg, injuries, or anything of that

24 nature, but I Just want to ask you generally.
25 Is it fair to say that you've treéated with
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1 dozens of healthcare providérs over the years?

2 A Due to the fact I have cerebral palsy, yes.

3 "] T don't want to talk about those, &5 far as

4 what the treatment was, but any of thoge dozens
5 of healthcare providers, did any of them ever

6 tell you what profit they were making whén they
7 were treating you?

10 after ‘the age of 18, I don't believe so, no.
11 0 Okay. Aftér the age of 18, do you recall any
12 of them saylnhg, "Hey, you can get the same

13 treatment elsewhere for cheaper"?

14 A No, that was never brought up that I can

15 recall.

16 @  Of the chiropractors that you saw -- let's see.
17 You saw Dr. Kenneth Parker from age 2

18 until about 187

19 A  Uh-huh.

50§ Yes.

21 A Yes?

22 Q  Thanks.

23 A Sorry. T apologize.

24 @ No. No. That's okay. I do it too sometimes.
25 Did Dr. Kenneth Parker ever say, "Heéy,
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1 concernsg and my medical care seriously.
2 0 You're not claiming that Dr. Auck was gilving
3 kickbacks to KNR, are you?
4 A No, I'm not.
5 O TWell, didn't KNR refer you to Rolling Acres,
6 whére he worked?
7 A Yes, they did.
8 9] The fact that they referred you there, don't
9 you infer from that that ‘they're somehow
10 getting a kickback?
11 A No, I do not.
12 @ That's not a reasonable inference, is 1t?
13 A A reasonable inference as far as they'ré
14 getting kickbacks? Is that what you're asking
15 e ?
16 Q@ Yes
17 A I wouldn't dssume that just becalse an attorney
18 refers you to a doctor that they're getting
19 kickbacks. They may refer you thérée because
20 othér patients had success with that doctor.
21 Q  Other patieént may have had excellent care from
22 that doctor, ‘true?
23 A Correct. Yes.
24 0  That doctor might be willing to execute &
25 letter of protection on the médical bills,
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1 true?
2 A Yes.
3 O That's important, isn't it?
4 A Yes, it is.
5 Q  What is your understanding of what stage of the
6 case we're in right now in thé class action?
7 A That we are taking -- we're in discovery and
8 that the stages of c¢lass certification is
9 coming soon,

10 Q Okay. Do you know what has to be proven for
11 the class to be certified?

12 A No, I do not.

13 Q  What pleadings have you read other than the
14 complaint?

15 A  I've HJust readd the complaint.

16 Q  Anything else?

17 A No.

18 @ Do you know what mofions have been filed?

19 A No.

200 Q You haven't goné orn thé docket to look at all
21 of the different motions or anything?

22 A At one point I believe I tried, but some of
23 that stuff was down at Tthe ‘time from the court
24 system when I tried. So I have not been back

25 on sindce,
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1 because they get off the top of any
2. - seéttlements.

3 0 Now, Dr. Goubrial never called up KNR when you

4 were at the office with him, did he?

5 A Not that I'm aware of.

6 QO We already talked about the fact that jou went
7 there on Dry Auck's referral, cortect?

oo
ot

Correct.

9 O .And Dr, Goubrial discussed with you the trigger
10 point injections before you got them?
11 Yes,
12

A
Q
13 A Yes.
Q
A

14 You wanted them?

15 I agreed to them bédause I bélieved in what he
16 said, they would help me. 86 I agreed to them,
17 yes.

18 Q After you got one, you thought. it provided some

19 relief?

20 A ¥Yes, I did.

21 @ And when you went back, you got another one?

22 A Yesg.

23 Q  And you agreed ‘to that one?

24 A Yes:

25 Q And after that you got gome relief, so you went
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1 back again, true?

2 A Yes,

3 Q And that helped as well?

4 A Yes,

5 ¢ During any of those times, you don't know

6 whether KNR knew how many injectionsg you were

1 getting or not until they got the recdords,

8 true?

9 A Yes, that would be correct.

10 Q You're not trying to say that Mr. Redick or KNR
11 conspired with Dr, Goubrial for you to get

12 injections, are you?

1.3 A  Not me specifically, no.

14 @ Now, if we look at Frain Chiropractic on the
15 settlement memorandum on Exhibit 10.

16 A Yes.

17 Q How did you get to Frain Chiropractic?

18 A It's actually Frain.

18 Q Frain. I'm sorry.

20 A That's okay.

21 T- had called -- Dr. Auck c¢losed his

22 office in Akron and I had a relationship with
23 him. 8o I called him and asked him i1f he knew
24 any chirdpractors;in the area that he trusted,
25 he could refer me to. And he gaid him and
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1 0 Why not?
2 A Because I was also still seeing Dr, Auck at the
3 time for regular maintenance care and he had a
4 professional TENS unit, was doing it there.
5 ¢ Explain what you mean.
6 A Okay. What part do you need me to explain?
7 R  You -sald he had a profesgsional there.
8 A A professional TENS unit.
9 0  Qkay.
10 A  Borry.
11 © 8o you were using a TENS unit at Dr. Auck's?
12 A Yes, 1 was.
13 ¢ It helped?
14 A Yes; it did.
15 O  So you dén't know whether the TENS unit
16 Dr. Goubrial prescribed you #Would have helped
17 or not?
18 A  No, I do not.
19 Q Because you never uged it?
200 A  Correct.
21 Q@ Did you tell Dr. Goubrial you couldn’t reach?
22 A That was never anything that was brought up.
23 That was handed to me as I walked out of the
24 office and he, you know, walked away. So there
25 was not an opportunity to even say that.
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1 Q Well, you went back and saw him again, though,
2 right?

3 A Yes, I did. For another --

4 Q Did veu tell him at that time?

5 A For another case.

& No, I did not.

7 0 So it was your very last visit with

8 Dr. Goubrial from the first accident that he
9 handed you the TENS upnit?

10 A Yes, sir.

11 Q Then when you saw -- you saw Dr. Goubrial
12 again?

13 A Yes, I did.

14 O For the second case?

185 A Yes, T did.

16 19 During the first case were you pleased with
17 Dr. Goubrial's care?

18 A For the most part, ves.

19 Q What were you not pleased with?

20 A The amount of muscle relaxers he was

21 prescribing to me.

22 Q Okay. Were you upset with Akron General for
23 presgcribing muscle relaxers?

24 A No.

25 Q Why?
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1 Q You saw him write it?

2 A I did not sée him write it, no.

3 o) Where did he get it from?

4 A I don't know where he gpt it from. I would,

5 you know,; be out making an appointment for the
6 next visit at theé front desk and be handed the
7 presdription by the receptionist.

8 Q  Qkay. You would then take that to the

9 pharmacy?
10 A Yes.
11 @ Certainly the pharmacy knows that 1f you have
12 one open prescription, they're not geing to

13 fill another one, fair?

14 A T would assume that's correct; yes.

16 given the first accident?

17 A To the best of my recollegction, two to three.
18 Q _Qkay. That didn't cause you any ﬁnju;y or
19 - damage, did itz

20 A No, because I stopped taking thé medicatién.
21 Q QOkay. The second time that you saw

22 Dr. Goubrial, did you get trigger point

23 injections again?

24 A I believe I did, yes.

25 Q@  And you wanted them?
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i A He suggested them and I agreed to them, ves.

2 Because they worked the first time?

Q
3 A T believe they worked the filrst time, yes.
Q

4 Never once did Dr. Goubrial ever give you a

| _ .

| 5 trigger point injection that you didn't want,
6 did he?

7 A  Are you deeming by force?

8 © By any way.

9 How did he -- did he give you a trigger
10 point injection that you didn't want?
11 A No.
12 @ Okay. When did he give you a TENS unit the
13 second time?

14 A I was only at his office on the second case for

15 a couplé visits, but it was either -- maybe the
16 gecond or third, if there even was a third.

17 But shortly after -- shortly after treatment

18 ‘began.,

19 Q0  Okay. What was the discussion about the TENS
20 unit?

21 A He just handed me one, told me that I should

22 use this. I advised him I already had another
23 one at home. And he said, "Well, here. You
24 ¢carn have another.™

25 Q@ He didn't tell you he was going to charge you?
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1 pain well"?

2 A That sounds about correct, vyes.

3 Q Okay. He's alsu done several cortisone shots

4 in ‘the neck and back to relieve some trigger
5 points,

5 Do you recall telling her that?

7 A I believe s0, yes.

8 Q¢ What's a trigger point?

9 A From what my understanding is, part ©of a musc¢le
10 that flares up and they -- the trigger that
11 causés the issue to happen.
12 Q@ It certainly wasn't an unspecified shot back at
13 ﬁhe_timg_ng were talking to Danielle Delong,
14 was 1t?
15 A Can you rephrase that, please?

16 0 Sure.

17 Was it an unspecified ghot when you
18 called Danielle Delong in June 2012 and told
19 her it was cortisone?

20 A No, because that's what Dr. Goubrial told me he
21 was putting in me. 9o that's what I teold her.

22 o Okay. He specified to you what itjwas_and'you

23 told that to her?

24 A  Correct.

25 Q And then the next month, though, you becanme
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1 vou to Goubrial is false. Is that also true?
2 MR, PATTAKOS: Object.

3 Q They can't both be true, right, Richard?
4 A Well, they can be, because i1f one brings up the
5 doctor and the other one refers hin, they're
6 correlated and linked together.
7 Q Based on what?
8 A Béased upon the fact that their attorney,
9 Mr, ‘Lindsey, brought up that'ﬁhey work with
10 Dr. Goubrial.
11 Q But we've already establighed that neéither
12 Attorney Lindsey nor anyone else from KNR
13 actually told you to go to Goubrial, right?
14 B Correct.
15 0 Okay. You don't see the contradiction there,
16 sir?
17 A No, I don't see a contradiction there.

18 Q  Okay.

19 MR, PATTAKOS: I don't see one
20 either, for the récord.

21 MR, BARMEN: Nebody asked

22 you.

23 MR. PATTAROS: I understand.

24 o) Dr. Auck at one point gave you options relative

25 to doctors; right, because there was a problem
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1 Q You were not pressured to treat with Goubrial,
A correct?

3 A No. It was suggested T treat with him, but not

I

pressured.

9 were referred to Dr. Goubrial by Dr. Augck., Are
10 you changing that testimony now?

11 A No. And as I've stated before, in the initial

12 consultation with Mr. Lirdsey, he mentioned
13 they had a relationship with Dr. Goubrial.

14 Yes,; Dr. Auck did_heip facilitate that

15 teferral, however, it is alsd my opinion that
16 there had to be some kind of back dealings in
17 there that -- how would -~ Dr, Atuck, a

18 chiropractor, knew about a medical doctor and
19 that =- the same doctor that KNR had alsd

20 meritiohed. There had to be back dealings in
21 there.

22 Q We've gone through this several times.
23 Attorney Lindsey never referred you to
24 Dr. Goubrial, true?

25 A He sald that was a doctor T gould treat with.
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1 a trigger point, true?

2 A  That's what you state the medical record shows,
3 yes.

4 0 Okay. ©So 1f you hdve alleged that he would

5 push trigger points and give shots, as opposed
% to prescribing pills, that wouldn't be true, at
1 least ag it relates to you, correct?

8 A In the firgt ‘two visits, yes.

9 @ I think Mr, Mannion went through that

10 sufficiently.

11 You understovnd, s$ir, that if KNR hadn't
12 recovered for you din your cases, you would have
13 been pergonally regpongible to pay

14 Dr. Goubrial's bills for services provided,

15 correct?

16 A  Under the agreements I signed, yes.

17 Q  You read those agreements before you signed
18 them?

19 A Yes, I did.

20 Q0  And you authorized those bills to go to KNR,
21 correct?

22 A Yes, I did.

23 Q You authorized voluntarily those amounts be
24 withheld to pay for the bills, right?

25 A Yes, I did.
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1 get a trigger point injection_and leave, was
2 it?
3 A No.
4 Q In fact, what you told Dr. Goubrial at the

=~ o
o
e
e
o
~0

A  The one pill T had taken at the time, yes.

8 0 You1 Then discussed at that seécord visit that if

9 you gontinued to have pain, ‘that ‘then you might
10 get isome trigger point injections.
i1 Do you recall that?

12 A Possibly, yes.

13 Q  When you came back, you still had some pain,

14 fair?

15 A If he gave mé the trigger point injection and
16 that's what 1 sald, yes:

17 0 It says here "I talked with him about the risks
18 and benefits.ofitrigger}point-injections."

19 Which he did, correct?

200 A T don't recall that exact; but something

21 similar to that, ves.

22 Q  He actually lists in here the exact

23 medications. Methoprazine and - T can't

24 pronounce it right. But he told you at the

25 time it was -- what 4did he tell you at the time
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1 he was injecting you with?
2 A Cortisone.
3 0 What did he tell you it would do?
4 iy It would stop muscle spasm in the trigger
5 points to relax them.
6 0  Okay. When you came back in June, June 8,
7 2009, to see Dr. Goubrial, you told him that
8 you had tremendous relief from the trigger
9 point injections, true?
10 A  That's what I said, yes.
11 ¢ But you had a recurrence in a different area.
12 And that was with your lower back. Do you
13 recall that?
14 A  Not 100;percent{
15 @ Do you réc¢all whéen at one point you started to
16 make progress and your lower back seeméd 6
17 start hurting again?
18 A Yes.
19 @ He identified two triggér points in the lower
20 ‘back. Do you recall that?
21 A I recall one, possibly two, yes.
22 Q Do you remember at that visit in June he
23 actually gave you four trigger point injections
24 ‘because he found four trigger points?
25 A I don't remembér the exact amount, I just know
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10
And that was from 1993 to 12967
Yes, sir,

Where did you go to high school?

T was four.

When .you gay imiigrated from North Africa you
mean Eqgypt?

Yes,

Did you ever live anywhére elge in North Africa
other than Egypt?

No.

Have you éver lived anywherg in Africa besldes
Egypt?

‘I believe wg lived in Alexandria for a little
bit, whigh is also part of Egypt.

It's a ity in Egypt, correct?

Yes, sir.

So there's no othér cgurntry that you lived in in

‘Africa other than Egypt, correct?
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i1
That's is correct, sgir,.
Okay. It says here under medical practice that
you are the president and owner of Sam N.
Ghoubrial M,.D. Inc., Wadsworth's largest primary

care practice, Is that true?

suite 402, Wadsworth, Ohio 44281.

Yes.

TIs that a4 current address?
Yes, sir,

HOw. do .ydu know you're Wadsworth's largest

primary <dare practice?

Well, thefe_were several practices that had

gotten bought up by the hospital and so that left
us with the most doctors and the largest patiént
base by virtue of attrition. And we acquired
some other doctors in the area.

Does this -- are you taking into account --
strike that.

Doeg Sam N: Ghoubrial MiD: Inc encompass both
your family practice and the personal injury
practice?

No, sir.

What is the personal injury practice named?
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I believe it was '17 or '18,
What does it mean to be board certified?
Tt means you completed an accredited residency,
you took theé boards, passed the boards and then
ten years later I also passed the recertification
part.
I just haven't had time to take it.
Are you allowed to practice without .it?
Yes.
Okay.
I'm board gligible.
How does it impgqt_ygur practice to have your
board certification éexpire --

MR, BARMEN; Objection.
-- 1if at all?

MR, BARMEN: Ubjection. Go ahead.

Tt didn't i-- it's not uncommdén for us to take

some time due to circumstances. I just simply

didn't have the time to rénew 1t and so they --

they allow .you a leeway of several years before

You can get recertified again. 'So I remain board

eligible,
And is your Ohio licensure still current?

Yes.
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22
the internal medicine practice?
Personal injury clinic, almost all those patients
have been involved in some sgsort of accident
whether it be a slip/fall or a motor vehicle
accident.

The primary care internal medicine practice,
that's involved in managing ¢hionic conditions
like high blood pressure or diabetes, wellness
checksg, things like that.

What's the purpose of keédping the personal injury
clinic separate?
MR. BARMEN: ObJjection.
I'm sorry?
What's the purpose of keeping the personal injury

clinic séparate from the internal medicine

practice?

MR. BARMEN: Objection.

conventional, .just primary care. The other
populat -= group of patients are just almost
exclusively related to dccldents. So it's a

completely different patient population.
Well, why would that require two geparate

clinice?
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Q. You don't publish advertisements for the personal

injury clinic, do you?
No,
So how does the personal injury clinic get its
bﬁsiness?

MR, BARMEN: Objection.
the need for them to be seen by an allopathic
provider. Becgause their modalities, ag you know
in the personal injury setting, ¥You need to take
a multidisciplinary approach, and I've testified
to that before. The ridcdalities the c¢hirdprdctor
can't do and the modalities I can't do, £b ‘the
best approach to these patients is a
multidisciplinary approach, So generally it's
usually done by the patient and the chiropractor.
When you said the chiropractors in this answer,
which ghirépractors?
Severals, Like T'll be available, as you
mentioned; in one of the chiropractic clinics,
and they'll say, look, we have a doctor on board,
if you can't see your doctor, you're more than
happy to see one we have here, and so they make
the choice together.

The chiropractor and the patient?
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1 seen, It's an underserved community,
2 predominantly minority, they don't have a lot of
3 health insurance, they can't get in to see a
4 doctor, can you help us out? So I did. And so
5 it was actually Jim Slater who got me involved,
6 Q. Of the Slater & Zurz law firm?
7 A, Yes.
8 Q. You said primarily minority, what do you mean by
9 that?
10 A, Many of them are minérity patients and many of
11 them are sociocecononmically disadvantaged.
12 Q. You mean minority ethnic groups?
13 | A. Some. You know, some Lating, some African
14 American, some from various parts of the world,
15 some from the Middle East. And s0 thése patiernts
16 have vet to get established, yet to have
17 insurance, yét Lo gstablish a primary care.
18 Bo 4t's an underserved area where they're
19 looking for doctors to sort of take care of these
20 patierits. “And it's hard enough for them to
21 receive care in thé conventional setting and
22 certainly they can't f£ind it in a setting like
23 the one you're referring o,
24 | Q. wWhat's that?
25 A, Personal injury.
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1 Q. So how did it develop from there with -- from

2 vour c¢onversation with Mr, Slater?

3 MR. BARMEN: Objection. Go ahead.
4 A, Well, evéntually started talking te a few

5 chiropractors, they said, veah, yvou know, we have
6 a need because these patients can't get seen,

7 they kept having to go back to the ER, back to
-8_é the ER, the family doctor won't sgee them. They

9 é don't have health insurance, they don't have
10 f anybody that will take care of them and they need
11 ; to be treated. Can you help us obut, so I did.
12 | Q. wWho was the first chiropractor you worked with in
13 : thig way?

14 A. You know, T don't recall.

15 | Q. Who are the chiropractors that you work with .in

16 | this way?

17 ; MR, BARMEN: Today?

18 MR. PATTAKOS: Over time.

i9 | A, Gosh, there's been =30 many{ Some of them have
20 come and gone --—

21 |Q. Uh-huh,.

22 : A. —-- but there's been quite a few,

23 ? Q. Mho are the ones that send vou the most patients?
24 MR: BARMEN: Objection. Go ahead.

25 | A. Again, I don't keep track of that, so I don't
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know.
0. Well, you only travel to so many cliniecs,

correct?

Correct,

What are the glinics that you travel to?

We go to Detroit Shoreway, Columbus, Akron,
Canton.

What are the ©linics in these wities that you go
to to treat?

Right. What are the clinics? What clinic¢ in
Columbus: Town & Country?

Yeah. Town & Country is the name of one of them,
yeah.

Do you treat at any other clinics in Columbus?
No, sir.

and in Akron you treat patients at Akron Sguare

Chiropractic, corregt?

I don’t know what it's called, but --
Dr. Floros' --

Dr: Floraos --

-— practice?
Yes, yes, sir.,
On Arlington Street.

Yes, sir,

Sandra Kurt, Summit County Clerk of Courts




CV-2016-09-3928

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

MICHAEL, KATHRYN 06/27/2019 16:10:00 PM NFIL Page 74 of 93

47
And Town & Country is Dr. Khan, correct?
I think Dr. Khan is there but there's a few other

doectors,

Dr. Rendek, het husband, correct?
Yeah, but there's also chiropractors that they
hire, so I think it's more than just them.

Who are the c¢hiropractors at the Detroit Shoreway

Clinic?

‘T believe it's Dr. Cawley, Eric Cawley:

MR. PATTAKOS: What 18 =- David,
why are you showing him notes 4n the ‘middle
of his testimony? You want fo produde that
and make it an exhibit, David?

BY MR. PATTAKOS:
Dr. Ghoubrial, what's ¢on the note that David Best
just showed you?

MR, BARMEN: Objectlon.

It was nothing pertaining to this case.

Okay. Who are the attorney.~~'sorry‘ What's the
name of the chiropractic in Cantoh where you
treat patients?

Canton Injury.

And that's Dr, Tassi, correct?

I don't know he's there ariymore.

But he usged to be there, correct?
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Please identify them,
Again, like I said, there's a whole litany of
things., T don't recall what they are off the top
of my head.

MR, PATTAKOS: Why don't we take a

ghort break.
THE VIDEOGRAPHER:; We're going off

the record. The time 15 11:39,

(Thereupon, a reécéss was had.)

THE VIDEOGRAPHER: We're back on
thé record. The time is 11:51.

BY MR, PATTAKQS :
Dr., Ghoubrial, you testified that the patients of
your personal.injuﬁy practice were typically
involved in some kind of accident, correct?
Correct,
And most of those patiénts in your personal
injury practice are treating with you for pain
resulting from soft tissué¢ injuries, correct?
Correct,
And that's as opposed to brokenh bones or
herniated discs or something like that?

We see some herniated discs.
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1 FEach and every patient is individual.
2 Q. So once a trigger point resolves --
3 A, Uh-hih,
4 Q. ~—- there 1s no way you can prove that it once
5 existed, correct?
& A. No, actually that's great proof that it existed.
7 Once you administer a trigger point and the pain
8 goes away, as I've seen in thousands of cdses,
9 then you can be sure that not only did you
10 locdlize the trigger pdint, vou treated the
471 trigger point with the proper medication, wou
12 intrgduced it into the proper area and got the
13 desired result.
14 ¢. How do you know the pain wasn't being caused by
15 something else?
16 MR. BARMEN: Objection.
17 A. BPBecause I examined the patient.
18 Q. ©Okay. We'll get into that. My gquestion though
19 is different from thé one you answered. My
20 gquestion wasg: A trigger point itself, whether
21 you inject it or not, let's say you don't inject
22 the trigger point, when a:trigger point forms in
23 a patient and resolves, there is no way -that you
24 can tell =- there's no way that you can prove it
25 once existed after it resolved unless you took an
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1 it with a broad brush. Patients who are involved
2 in motor vehicle accidents have acute muscle
3 trauma and they also meet the criteria, on
4 occasion patient-specific depending on case, for
5 a trigger point. So I disagree with that
& particular statement.
7 Q. Isn't the point, Dr. Ghoubrial, that when a
8 patient suffers acute muscle trauma, 1t's
9 impossible to tell whether the pain is coning
10 from a trigger point or nét, which is why you
11 wait for the acute pain % resolve before
12 you identify a trigger poirte
13 MR, BARMEN:; Objection. Go ahead,

14 A. That's not the case. I've treated thousands of

15 theéé patients, I can guarantee you more than the
16 authors of these articles and I've seen the

17 benefits of the trigger point injections and T

18 know when.to_give-them, how to give them, where
19 to give them &nd when not to give them.

20 Q. Have you ever publighed a study on trigger point
21 injections?

22 A, I have not.

23 Q. You think that's something you might do one day?
24 MR. BARMEN: Objection.

25 A. I don't know, never gave it any thought.
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Who else?
I don't know Off the top of my head, but I know
when T was in training they said that on occasion
they use trigger poéint injections.
Any other reason you disagree with this ofher
than what you've already stated today?
I've treated thousands of patients with
fibromyalgia and typically they respond well to
some tricycdlics, but on occasion they may need
trigger poifit injections,
Well, when Yyou adminisgter trigger point
injections; how do you kidw the Ppatient's pain is
tissue trauma or other idissues related to their
accident?

MR. BARMEN: Objection.
Because ‘they come in after the accident. They
weré pain free before and now they have pain

afterwdrds., They have subjective and objective

findings to support it.

you'lre giving them other pain medication, you're
giving them museéle relaxers, they're undertaking
chiropractic treatment -- every single one of

them is undertaking chiropractic, how do you know
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of time, as far as narcotlics T don't use
narcotics on every patient. In fact, that's one
of the reasons that T like to use trigger points,
when appropriate is to aveid thée uige of
nargotics, Muscle relaxers, again, it's patient
specific,

I can't emphasize to you_engugh that there 1is
to everyone. Fach individual 4s specific.

Dr. Ghoubrial, how do you khdw that it's not the

MR. BARMEN: Objection. Go ahead.

As I téstified to before, these patients get

better in a multidisciplinary manner: You treat
them with allopathic care. You treat ‘them with

chiropractic and physical therapy and

their treatment. I know that because I've beéen
deing it for ten .years ¢n thousands of patientss
They wouldn't be seeing'mg had the chiropractor
been sufficient. They would have simply said,
I'm doihg okay with the chiropractor.

So you're saying 1t's better to provide as much
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1 treatment and as many different kinds of
2 treatment as possible and the patient is more
3 likely to get better that way"?
4 MR, BARMEN: Objection.
5 MR. BEST: Objection.
6 MR. BARMEN: That's not what he
7 gaid,

8 A. That's not what I'm saying. I'm saying that
9 patients improve when you take &

10 multidisciplinary approach to their care.

11 Q. What is a multidisciplinary approach?

12 MR, BARMEN: Objection.

13 | A, 1In other wo6rds, depending on the patient, like I

14 sald it's patient specific, there's no orne class
15 of patients here., If & patient comes in ~- and
16 T'11 use an example. They have cervical. pain

17 with guarding, spasm, and they also have a disc
18 injury. So I can treat thé cervical strain with
19 some @ntiinflammatories, pdssibly with some

20 trigger points. When I find out about the disa,
21 the chiropractor may do somé traction. If the
22 disc is significant after the MRI, we may refer
23 them to pain management. They can do some

24 epidurals to try and shrink the disc., TIf that
25 doesn't work, then they may regquire surgical
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amelioration. A long term opioid use at which
point we refer them, So every patient is
specific,

If you'rée looking for one answer that covers

all patients, it just simply doesn't exist.
I'm just looking for an answer of when you're
injecting a patient with a trigger point
injection within a week or two after they get
into a car accldent and they get. better, I just
want to know how you know that it's the trigger
point injection and not the chiropractic care
that they're receiving or not the
narcotics that they may be taking or ‘that the
injury is simply not regolving over time, you
haven't explained that?

MR. BARMEN: Objection.

MR. POPSON: Objection.

MR, BARMEN: He has.

If yvou don't have a better answer than what
you've provided, then let me know. But if you

do, please, now would be the time to provide it.

MR, BARMEN: Objec¢tion., Move to
strike the inappropriate narrative. Asked

and answered.
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1 MR. MANNION: Objection.

2 Plaintiff's counsel's ignorance as to the
3 medical issues is not a proper method to
il impeach a witnéss,

5 MR. BEST: Sustained.

& BY MR. PATTAKOS:

7 |A. RAs I told you, each patient is different. You're
8 looking for one answer ‘that fits all patients =~-

9 0. Any answer that would €fit any patient -~

10 : MR, BEST: Don't interrupt him.
11 | A, UNo, no, no, there's nio such thing.

12 MR. MANNION: Objection.

13 Interrupting the wWithéss.

14 A. There's no such thing, Peter, Peter, I wish I

15 ; could give you the answers yéu're looking for,

16 é but I ¢an only tell you the truth. Thé truth is
17 each and every one of the patients that I treat
18 i & unique dndividual by virtue of their age, by
19 virtue of their problems, by virtue of the

20 | medications they're on, by virtue of the

21 contraindications, by virtue of when they

22 present, how ‘they present. So there is no

23 uniform answer that T ¢an give vou, I can just

24 | teéll you it's patient specific.

25 | Q. ©Okay.
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MR. POPSON: Objection. Form,
MR. MANNION: Objection.
Incomplete hypothetical.
MR. BARMEN: Improper
hypothetical. To the eéxtent you can, go
ahead.
I've had ten years of exgeﬁiénce doing this. T
give them., If it's an acute event and I give the
trigger point injection ‘and I alleviate their

pain and they're happy, I'm geing to do 1t,

Petér, TIf T can avold the use¢ of narcotics while

I'm doing it, I'm going teo do it, If I only need

a week's worth of narcotics and a couple of

trigger points; I'll take that routes

I want to get the patient back to beling
productive and working and pain free as quickly
as possible.

How do you know it's the injections that are
working, Doctor -—-
MR. BARMEN: Ob-jection.
Because --
-- and not any of those other things?
They come back -- Llike I said, it's based on ten

or 12 years of experience. They come back and
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1 they say, héy, these trigger point injections did
2 great. I was in horrible pain before, after

3 these injections, IT'm now able to go back to

4 work —-

5 Q. How would the patient ——

6 |A, -- so your hypothetical -~

7 Q. How would the patient know?

B MR, BARMEN: Objection,

9 A, The patient tells me.

10 0, Well, how do they know it's the injections =
(! 4. I examine --

17 ¢. == and not any of thegé other modes of treatment?
13 MR. BARMEN: Don't argue with him,
14 don't speak ovef him and doen't raise your
15 voicé to him. TLet him finigh the answer to
1% the question you asked.

17 A, Fach patient, Peter, ié an individual. I treat
18 that patient acgcording to their symptoms,

19 according to their circumstances. And when they
20 come back and tell me, Doctor, thank you, I've

21 been able to get back to work within a few days
22 : of those cortisone shots that you gave me, I

23 é really appreciate it, I don't need to have themn
24 f anymore, I know it was the medication.

25 Because on the flip side I've seen patients
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MR, BARMEN; Objection, Other
thHan what he Just told you?
MR, PATTAKOS: Yes,
| 2. If those patients are already under chiropractic
care, 1f they're not, I recommend physical
therapy. I'm not a physical therapist or a
chiropractor sé6 I -think that's ohe less invasive.
Dcecasionally TENS units, thoss are helpful.

o, Anything else?

A, Yes. On occasions braces.

Q0. What about RICE ‘therapy?

MR. BARMEN: Objection,

A, DNever used it.

Q. Do you understand what it is?

A No.,

Q. Reéest, i1lde, <¢ompression, elevation,

A, Those are modalities that the chiropractor would
recommend. By the time they get to meﬂ.théy‘re
not candidates for that: Or if they are, I send
them back to the chiropradtor.

0. Do you provide trigger point injections Lo
patients in your family -- 1'm sorry, your
internal medicine practice?

MR. BARMEN: Objection. Go ahead.

A, Typically I do joint injections there. Very
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Additional treatment modality.
And you were using the TENS units to treat for
which diagnoses?
We treat a Vari@py, Some cervical, sSome
thoracic, some lumbar, some unilateral, some
bilateral, some trapezius, some perigcdpula¥, any
number...
You're referring to body parts there, What type
of injuries? Sprain and strains; is that what
you're primarily weferring to?
Okay. How does thé TENS Unit work to provide
relief to the patients?
There was -- delivers .low dose electrical

frequency, it stimulates thé muscle, and provides

g¢me relief.

Doés it provide relief to patients suffering from

mysfascial pain syndrome?

MR. BARMEN: Objection.

fibromyalgia, are you talking in ‘the context of

the myofascial pain syndrome that we ;see in the
motor vehicle accident setting?

Either one.
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1 A, It does provide benefits in both settings, in my

2 opinion.

3 Q. You rely on any research or peer-reviewed studies
4 to support your use of TENS units?

5 A, Over the vyears, I've sgen many articles that ‘have
o peinted to the benefits of utilizing TENS units.
7 And further more, it's ancther modality that

8 allows us to avoid narcotics, when possible.

9 Q. Could you -- do any articles specifically come to
10 mind, either the author or the specific ¢ontéents
11 of the articles?

12 A. There's -- I have Be&H dogens of articleés, but

13 none of them come to mind;

14 0. Do you use the TENS units to treat patients for
15 anything, other than straing or sprains?

16 | A:. Predominantly, that's it.

17 Q. ‘Does the same go for back braces?

18 A. No, Back braces, T typically usg in a patient

19 who not only ha's lumbar strain, pain on range of
20 motion, and may be engaged in some sort of

21 physical aétivity or is trying to get to work and
22 needs to beé braced in order to give him some

23 additional support.

24 |9, oOkay. and that's typically for strains or

25 sprains to the lumbar regilon?
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reflects what we wereé -- what we actually were
paid. But I know on 99.9 percent of the cases,
we recelve a reduction,
Ckay.
But --
And you said it's typically about 30 or 40 ox
50 percent, that reduc¢tion?
I wish it were that good. It varies anywhere
from 30 percent to, you know -- I just settled a
case now for 75 percent reduction.

So what vou're seeing here is the paid
amount, which represents & reduced figure from
what's billed. The only way to find out would be

to go through each individual patient and find

dut what was billed., The software doesn't do

‘that.

Okay. 1 just want 'to pull these up on my
computér, if you give me one morment here.

Okay. Here we are. Okay. 8o, the
deductible field on this first ekhibit, I'm
sorry, it's Exhibit 5%

Yes,
That's esséntially meaningless, because that only
pertains to insurance, correct?

Correct.
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25th, it says she is going to have extensive
surgery on her right arm for the fracture to the
shoulder. And on June lst 1t says, she 1s golng
to have surgery of her shoulder, correct?

Right. And it also says -- let's read the whole

not only because of the neck, the back, and the
fracture.
And she redeived four prescriptiéng for narcotics

And that was on April 27th, May 4th, May 10th,
and June 1lst, corréct?

That's correct,

And no muscle relaxers; no TENS Unit, and no back
brace, correct?

Cérrect,

And this was after her first date of treatment at

‘Akron Square, being April 22nd, 2016. And you

correct?
Correct.

Okay. Dr. Ghoubrial{ of these 13 files that we

Just went over, 13 out of 13 were offered triggex
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MR. MANNION: Objection as to
arnything outside this case,.
Yes., When I had a settlement, it was not final
until Nestico did the appreoval of the c¢ut on the
medical bills -- on the chiropractic in

particular.

company, get authority from the client to accept
a certain net amount, was the way I did it, net
amount in their pocket. And in order to make
that work, I would have to adjust the medigal
bills, reduce doc¢tor whomever, and then I'd write
it all up saying, Qkay,_you_know, this makes the
math work if Dr. Kahn, for example, cuts her bill
from 5,500 to four, theéh thé math works, the
client gets what they'te éxzpéecting, we get
whatever in a fee, and then you take that file
all written up and set it in Nestico's office.

Or?

Or no., You kiow, you've got to get more, we've

got to take less or cut somebody elsée. Further

instruction. Most of mine were always okay

though, as T regall,
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doing.
THE WITNESS: Oh, okay,.

A, Zealously representing people within the bounds
of the law, whatever that entails, in any
particular case.

So T don't have a lot to say other than it's
¢dsy for him to say, but as a practical matter,
T'm not sure again that the tresatment from
Clearwater added value to the ¢lient's case.

MR. MANNION: Objection.
MR, RUBIN: Objection.

Q. And when you talk about insurance companies, to
solie¢ degree, dre always going to be deing their
jobs ~=-

A, Uh-huh,

Q. ~-- to represent their sides zealously, this isn't
just that, is it? What Kelly Phillips is talking
about here.

MR, RUBIN: Objection.
MR. MANNION: I'm going to objedt
again.

A. I would say no. It's a --+dt's a, you know,
_perceptiOn that these look like manufactured
cases., And that certainly is an opinion that T

share.
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record.

(QOff the record.)

THE VIDEQGRAPHER: On the record.
BY MR. PATTAKOS:

S0 eveh if a ¢lient had a primary care physi¢ian

who was reluctant to handle personal dinjury cases

or handle them in a way that maybe the &~ would

be best for the ¢lient in terms of fecovery,

there were othér doctors tThat the client dguld gg

gee, correct?

MR. MANNION: Objection.

MR. RUBIN: Objection.
Sure. There's -- you would get -- you know, some
of the dodtors would approach you if they wanted
to be involved in personal injury stuff. You
knéwy they would send you promotional materials
and buy you bagels. You know, hey, wé& can get --
do youn want-to;refer people here? You know,
we'll work on an assignment or we'll work on a
lettér of protection; Less often certainly for
MDs than other doctors, but, yeah.

There were algo doctors who would be comfortable

handling perscnal injury cases and being paid
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